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July 27, 2010'

I

Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO) I
u.s. Environmental Protection Agency, Region ',III
1650 Arch Street i

Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

Re: In the Matter of Derry Township Municipal Authorit
Proceeding to Assess Class I Administrative Penalty
EPA Docket No. CWA-03-20IO-4I265

Dear Sirs:

Enclosed for filing in the above-referenced matter is the Answer of the Respondent.
Derry Township Municipal Authority. Please enter the appearance of eouln~el for Respondent as

set fonh in the i\nswer.l. \...

Please tnne-stamp the enclosed copy of the first page of the Answertevldencmg receIpt of
same and return the stamped copy to the undersigned in the enclosed stanlped, self-addressed
envelope. I

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.
I

V'~:7c)k\'
Randall G. Hurst

Enclosure I
cc: R. Watters, Derry Township MunicipalAuthority

529077,1

Wyomissing Oflice 11105 Berkshire Boulevard, Suite 320 I \Vyomissirlg, PA 19610 ITelephone (717) 232~5000 I Facsimile (717) 23.'i-1816



In the Matter of:

Derry Township Municipal Authority
670 Clearwater Road
Hershey. Pennsylvania 17033-2453

Respondent

Proceeding to Assess cla11 Administrative
I 'Penalty Under Section 309(g) of the Clean Water

Act ,

EPA Docket No. CWA-03-20 I0-0265

I

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER TO COMPLAINT
I I I :.'

Respondent Derry Township Municipal Authority. through its attorneys, fAette, Evans &
Woodside and Hall & Associates. hereby files

l
the within Answer to thd above-captioned

Complaint filed by the Environmental Protection Ag~ncy Region III (hbr~after "EPA")
I i I I

. I STATUTORYAUTHORITY I

I. The allegations of paragraph 1 are legal conclusions to which no response is required. By

f f h d . . hi." . . h hi I h d" hway 0 urt er Answer, Respon ent IS WIt oul IlllorrnatlOn as to w et er1t e A mIlllstrator as

delegated CWA § 309(g)(3)(A) authority to t~e Regional Administrat+ and whether such

authority has been redelegated to the Director,of the Water Protection D+ision and, as such.

such allegation is Denied. The Complaint doek not allege, and it is therffore Denied. that the

person who signed the Complaint, Victoria p.lsenitti. is delegated sucn ~uthority and

Respondent objects to the Complaint as facially improper in that is not alleged to have been

issued by a delegated authority. In further ansler. to the extent an answelr is required. the

Respondent Denies the allegations for the rea~ons stated in paragraphs 2J 16. 17.23.24,27.28.

29 and 36 below. I I I
2. The allegation of paragraph 2 is a legal conclusion to which nolresponse is required.

However. because the averments of fact and l~W are,false and render thiJ Complaint illegal and
I

void. the Respondent Denies the allegation. Specifically:
I

A. Respondent points to the violations of § 14(a)(2) the Crsolidated Rules of

Practice Governing the Administrative Asseslment o(Civil Penalties. IsLance o{ComplianceQr

Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocatioh. Termination or SuspenLln o{Permits (40 CF
I I I .

Chapter L Part 22. hereinafter "Consolidated Rules ojPractice") (40 GFR § 22.14(a)(2)) as set

forth in Answers 16 and 23 below.

I I



inconsistent with the statute it is Denied.

1

B. The Consolidated Rules ofPra1tice state that "a copy of [tre] Consolidated Rules

of Practice shall accompany each complaint served." 40 CFR § 22.14(0).1 EPA did not provide ,It

copy of the Consolidated Rules ofPractice to lhe Respondent with the fomPlaint or at any othf!r

time. Accordingly, the allegation of paragraph
l

2 that the Complaint is ":in[accordance with the

enclosed Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil
I I

Penalties. Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination

or Suspension of Permits ('Consolidated RuleL, 40 C.F.R. Part 122" [blphaSis added] as statf1d

in this paragraph is false. I i I
Bv way of further Answer, Respondent refers to 40 eFR § 22.lB(a), "[a]ny proceeding

subject t; these Consolidated Rules of PractiJ is commenced by filing Jith the Regional

Hearing Clerk a complaint conforming to Sec.I 22.14." [Emphasis added]] Because EPA has n"lt

complied with the mandatory provisions of 46 eFR § 22.14 (a)(2) and [b\, this Complaint shoJd

be dismissed with prejudice. I i

3. The allegation of paragraph 3 is a legal conclusion to which no response is required. To

the extent a response is required, the regulatio'n speaks for itself. To the e1xtent the averment is
i

I

4. The allegation of paragraph 4 is Denied. To the contrary, section

I

301(a) of the Clean

S . . I . IWater Act (33 U..c. § 131 I (a) states, III Its ,ntnety, I

(a) Illegality of Pollutant discharges except in cO~lpliance with

law. I

Except as in compliance with :this section and section,s 1312, 1316,
1317,1328,1342. and 1344 of1his title, the discharge of~ny pollutant
by any person shall be unlawful,.: I I

I: I

5. The allegation of paragraph 5 is a legal conclusion to which nOI response is required. Te'

the extent a response is required. the statute s~eaks for itself. To the exte1nt the averment is

inconsistent with the statute it is Denied. I I I

6. The allegation of paragraph 6 is a legJI conclusion to which noi r~sponse is required. T .,

the extent a response is required, the statute s~eaks for itself. To the extdnt the averment is

inconsistent with the statute it is Denied.

2



I

7. The allegation of paragraph 7 is a legal conclusion to which no response is required. To

the extent a response is required, the statute sJeaks for itself. To the exleAt the averment is

inconsistent with the statute it is Denied. I

I
8. The allegation of paragraph 8 is a legal conclusion to which no !response is required. To

the extent a response is required. the statute sJeaks for itself. To the eJeAt the averment is

inconsistent with the statute it is Denied. I

I

II. FINDINGS OF FACT
I

9. The allegation of paragraph 9 is a lega,l conclusion to which no response is required. T

the extent a response is required, the allegatiob

l

is De,nied to the extent Ih~ averment is

inconsistent with the statute.

10. Denied. By way of further answer, upL information and beliefT, the Pennsylvania

Department of Environmental Protection ("P~DEP") issued an NPDEJ Jermit to the Responde t

on January 28, 2008. authorizing the discharg1e of pollutants under aut~o~ity of State law, the

Penmylvania Clean Streams Law, 35 P.S. § ~91.1 et seq. Respondent hts no information to

support the averment in paragraph 10 that the! Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has the authori

to issue permits under Section 402 of the Cleln Water Act but rather Jn1erstands. on
I I I

information and belief, that EPA has approvef the Commonwealth's 1PDES program and has

ceased issuing Federal permits under the proJisions of33 U.S.C. § 13/2tc). By way offurther
I I

answer, see subparagraphs 36.1.A (7) - (9) and 36.1.B (l) below. I

II. The allegation of paragraph II is a le~al conclusion to which no response is required. 10

the extent a response is required, the statute s~eaks for itself. To the eJtdnt the averment is

inconsistent with the statute it is Denied. I
12. Admitted.

III. FINDlN~S OF VIOLATIONS

Count I-Failnre to Sub~it Reevaluation of Local Limits

13. Admitted.

3



alleged.

Admitted.
I

Admitted. By way of further answer, Respondent submitted a reevaluation of its local
I

limits based on a headworks loading analysis on March 11,2010.
I

16. The allegation of paragraph 16 is a leg'al conclusion to which no response is required. T
I I I

the extent a response is required the allegation is Admitted in part and Denied in part. It is

admitted that failure to submit the reevaluatio~ by the date required is l +olation of Part C,

Section VI(E) of the Permit. With regard to t~e allegation of violation bflSection 301 of the Ac .

Respondent is unable to provide a response bdcause the Complaint dO+ not comply with the

requirements of the Consolidated Rules ofPr~ctice in that there is no "sJecific reference to eac

provision of the Act, implementing regulatioJs, permit, or order which Jespondent is alleged t,.
I I

have violated." 40 C.F.R. § 20.14(a)(2). The referenced statutory provision, "Section 301 of the

Clean Water Act," contains sixteen sUbsectio~s and occupies some 18 ~dges of small type. Aft"r

thorough review of the entire section, Responhent is unable to identifyla~y section of the Clearl

Water Act (in Section 30 I or otherwise) that ~equires the holder of an NJDES permit to sUbmi'!

any reports regarding a "reevaluation oflocaillimits based on a headwtJs analysis" within anll

specitic time frame or at all. Therefore, the allegation of paragraph 16 ~ekarding violation of

"Section 301" of the Act is Denied as impossible to understand, not aslehed with the specifici

required by the Consolidated Rules ofPractiJe. and as facially false. I

' I

17. The allegations of paragraph 17 are lefal conclusions to which ino response is required.

To the extent a response is required, the statutes and regulations speaklt~r themselves, To the
: I

extent the averment is inconsistent with the statute and regulations it is Denied. By way of

further answer. since upon the facts as stated ho violation of the Act hJs bccurred, no penalty

may be assessed in any amount under the cite~ provisions. The avermJnl that the Respondent i· a

"violator" is Denied as unsupported by any a~erment in the Complaintl
; t\1e averment that the

Respondent is "subject to civil penalties" is also Denied since no violaLJn has been credibly

I

14.

15.

18. Denied. On June 9,2009 EPA contacted the Respondent to report on its review of the

Authority's Annual Reports for 2007 and 200:8. A paragraph in that r+ifw letter indicated th

the Authority had not submitted the reevaluation oflocallimits and requested that it be

4



submitted. The letter also requested a response, but did not specify when; or in what form, the

response should be made. I' I

19. Denied. To the contrary, the fact, as recited in paragraph 19, is that the Authority

responded on March II, 20 I0, by submitting ~he reevaluation of its lodal1limits based on a
I '

headworks analysis to the author of the letter.'

I

Count II-Failure to Submit Sampling Plan
,

20. Admitted. I i

21. Admitted. I '

22. Admitted that the sampling plan was ~ot submitted by April 28
1

, 2008. By way of furthm

answer, Respondent submitted a description cif the sampling used in its r~evaluation of local

limits report in March, 2010. That descriPtio~ indicated that no samPlln~ plan (other than the

existing routine sampling conducted as part of the industrial pretreatm~nl program) was

necessary to obtain the necessary data for ree~aluation of the local limltJ.

23. The allegation of paragraph 23 is a le~al conclusion to which nlo ~esponse is required. 10

the extent a response is required the allegatio~ is Admitted in part and iD~nied in part. It is

admitted that failure to submit the sampling ~Ian by the date required is 1violation of Part C,

Section VI(E) of the Permit. With regard to t~e allegation of violationHSection 30 I of the Ac. ,

Respondent is unable to provide a response because the allegation does not comply with the

requirements of the Consolidated Rules ofprfctice in that there is no 'I's~ecific reference to ea:e

provision of the Act, implementing regulatio~s, permit, or order whicH Respondent is alleged r
have violated." 40 C.F.R. § 20. I4(a)(2). The referenced statutory pro~islion, Section 301 ofth,!

Clean Water Act, contains sixteen sUbsection~ and occupies some 18 Ra~es of small type. Afte~
thorough review of the entire section, Respo~dent is unable to identif~ ahy section of the Act tllat

requires the holder of an NPDES permit to s~bmit any sampling plan fO~ the reevaluation of loral

limits within any specified time period, or, fO~. m.. ffi""', " ,II Th"ifm" lli' kg.1 'lIo"ti]
of paragraph 23 with regard to Section 301 o~the Act is Denied as im~oksible to understand, ~r
asserted with the specificity required by the ~'onsolidated Rules ofPrJcLe, and as facially fal ·e.

24. The allegations of paragraph 24 are le1gal conclusions to which nb response is required

and they are therefore Denied. To the extent ~ response is required, the slatute and regulations

I 5
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speak for themselves. To the extent the averment is inconsistent with tt Istatute and regulation:
, ,

it is Denied. By way offurther answer, on thetacts as stated no violati6n
1

ofthe Act is alleged tl

have occurred, therefore no penalty may be assessed in any amount un~er the cited provisions.

Th h h d ·, . I " ". D . d I I'd b .e averment t at t e Respon ent IS a 'VIO ator IS eme as unsupporte y any averment m

the Complaint; the averment that the Respond~nt is "subject to civil pehalties" is also Denied
, ' I

since no violation has been credibly alleged. 1 1

25. Denied. On June 9, 2009 EPA contact~d the Respondent to reportlon its review of the

Authority's Annual Reports for 2007 and 2008. A paragraph in that re{iJw letter indicated tha

the Authority had not submitted the sampling klan and requested that iJ
I

b~ submitted. The lettel

also requested a response, but did not specify ~hen, or in what form, tHe ~esponse should be

ma~. I, I I

26. Denied. To the contrary, the Authority:responded on March II, 2~ I0, by submitting a

description of the sampling plan used to collect data along with the reevaluation of its locallimts

to the author of the letter.

IV PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY
,

27. No response is required to the proposed issuance ofa Final Orderl By way of further

Answer, Respondent notes that because the C~mplaint does not allege lny facts which could b

construed as a violation of sections 1311, 131 i, 13 16, 1317, 1318, 132t br 1345 of the Clean

W . . . d'll I' I d' . . d I.1. I dater Act, It IS Improper an 1 ega to Issue an or er Imposmg any a mmlstratlVe pena ty un t

Section 309(g)(2)(A) of the Act. In further an~wer, whether the proposJd1civii penalty constitut, s

a "demand" is a legal conclusion for which no;response is required. To lthle extent a response is

required to any of the allegations ofparagraph'n, the allegations are DbJied.

28. Denied. The facts recited in the Compl~int can be summarized Js ~n alleged failure to
" ' I

timely submit a sampling plan and an alleged failure to timely submit alreporl regarding

reevaluation of local limits based on a headwo~ks analysis. For such allegled violations EPA, as, , I
matter of law, is required to consider the follo\~ing factors in determinihg the amount of an

d .,. I . I d' f h I .1 1 , d' ha mmlstralive pena ty: nature, clfcumstances, extent an gravity 0 t e IVla atlon an ,Wit

respect to the violator, the ability to pay, any p~ior history of such violahdns, the degree of

culpability, economic benefit or savings (if an~) resulting from the violltilon, and other such
, I

1

6
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" I

matters as justice may require." 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(3). Assuming, arJendo, that violations f

the Clean Water Act are credibly alleged, no facts are alleged in this cbJplaint to support any f

these factors in any but the most de minimis amount. Therefore, the prdp~sal to impose the
, , I

maximum allowable penalty per se evidence~, the fact that EPA violatdd lits statutory duty to

consider the statutorily mandated factors in d~termining an appropriatelpenalty. The Responder t

objects to the EPA's false statement that it cO~Plied with this duty and td EPA's arbitrary and
I I

capricious actions in failing to comply with it~ legal obligations, thereby prej udicing the

d d · I' . d . h! I IRespon ent an VIO atmg ItS ue process fig t,s. I

29. The allegations of paragraph 29 are le~al conclusions to which (10: response is required

and are therefore Denied. To the extent a respbnse is required, the ResJondent notes that becau"e
I I I

EPA has violated at least two mandatory procedural requirements in issuing this Complaint, it

has no authority to issue a Final Order Assessi'ng Administrative Penalliek and any such order
: ' I

would be ullra vires and illegal. The averment is therefore Denied. I

30. The allegations of paragraph 30 are le~al conclusions to which nO
I

response is required

and are therefore Denied. By way of further a4swer, the Respondent hak 90nsistently complied

with the Act. 'i' II I

I 1

V. ANSWER TO COMPLAINT AND OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST HEARING

31 - 35 The averments of paragraphs 31 through 35 are legal co~ciusions to which no

. . d d h . D . d I h h . I, I. . h I' bIresponse IS reqUire an are t eretore eme to t e extent t ey are mconslstent Wit app Ica e

I I, I I

aw. I, 1 ,

36. Section 22.15(b) of the Consolidaled Rules ofPraclice sets forth the contents of an

answer and Respondent Denies the avennents ~n paragraph 36 to the eJeht inconsistent with §

22.15(b). By way of further answer. Responde~t asserts the following Jflnnation in accordancl·

with 40 C.F .R. § 22.l5(b): : I

1. Circumstances And Ar uments Which Constitute TJe Grounds Of Defense.

A. Circumstances. 'I, I I

(1 ) Respondent has no history of NPDES pennit violations r~lated to industrial wast~.

While two minor effluent exceedances of phosphorus liJitk have been reported.

i 7 II
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

, I

neither was due to inadequate or unenforced local limiJ ior to any industrial u.er
I I I

discharge. " II
The failure to submit the sampling plan was an administrative oversight and not

due to any malicious or wrongful intent. I 'I

Respondent enjoyed zero economic benefit by not submitting the sampling plan

by the date due. Since no sam~ling plan was, in fact, ne1eksary, no cost was

avoided or reduced by not dev~loping or submitting ond ~Iy the due date.
I I I

The Respondent enjoyed zero economic benefit by not submitting the

reevaluation report on time. In Ifact, the reevaluation wak Jeveloped in
i II I

consultation with a consultant in 2009 and early 20 I0, and the consultant's fees n

2009 and 2010 were higher th~n they were in 2008. HeJJ, the only economic

result of the delay was an incr~ase in the cost to the Authdrity to develop the
I I I

reevaluation. I, II
The work undertaken by Respondent in revaluating local limits based on a

I I '

headworks analysis is substantially more intensive than th~t required by any

applicable regulation. I II

The Respondent provided both
l
of the required documentsT~a sampling plan an a

report of the reevaluation oftht;: local limits based on a JeAdworks analysis-to

EPA on March 11, 2010. I

CWA § 402(n), 33 U.S.C. § 13~2(n), provides that States fuch as Pennsylvania

may have partial approval of its NPDES program (e.g., lithout pretreatment

program approval) only if the ~tate submits and the EPl1dministrator approve'

a plan for the State to assume administration of the remLJder of the program by a
, I

specified date not more than 5 years after submission of the partial program and

agrees to make all reasonable e~forts to assume administralion by such date. 33

U.S.c. § 1342(n)(4)(8). II· I
Pennsylvania's NPDES program was approved in 1977 without a pretreatment

I I I

program. Since 1987, when CWA § 402(n) was enacted" Pennsylvania has

continued to have a partial pro~ram and has not been on a ~chedule as required

§402(n)(4)(8).

8



requirements.

(b)

I'

I
II

Since 1987 (i.e., when CWA §402(n) was enacted), EPA amended its approval f

Pennsylvania's NPDES progr~m and did not require PehdsYlvania to be on a

schedule as required by CWA '§402(n)(4)(B). For eXar1pje, EPA public notice

modification of Pennsylvania's NPDES program on or 1bout August 30, 2002 a d
I I

approved such modification on or about January 7, 2004, yet EPA continued to

ignore the mandates of § 402(~)(4)(B). I I
There is no Federal law, regul~tion, or permit requiring [the submission of a

"sampling plan" for conductin~ local limits reevaluation t~ EPA or an approved
, I

State. Since evaluation of the need to revise local limits (40 CFR

§ 122.44(j)(2)(ii)) can be (and ;n this case was) easily accbmplished without

dd' . I I' I'! 1 . \ II J' ha ItlOna samp mg, a samp mg p an IS not a necessary e ement 0 suc an

I . M h b'·· f hI' II . 'heva uatlOn. oreover, t e su mISSIOn 0 suc a p an IS not a reqUIrement oj t e

Respondent's EPA-approved plretreatment program. Th~ )equirement to submit

this information is contained solely in a State permit isshel(j by the PaDEP unde

authorit~, if any, of State law C~pecifically: the pennsYIJ1aJlia Clean Streams La

35 P.S. § 691.202). I I

Requirements in approved State programs that are "beylnd the scope" of the

,. d I . I d dk'· . I,. I SIe era program mc u e recor eepmg or reportmg requlf~ments. ee,

Memorandum from William A:
I

Sullivan, Jr., EPA Enf01c1ment Counsel to

Regional Administrators and Regional Counsels, EPA Enforcement of RCRA­

Authorized State Hazardous W~ste Laws and Regulatio~sICMarch 15, 1982),
, ,

C"'EPA Enforcement Memoran~um"), available at 'I

http:/www/epa,gov/rcraonline.

The EPA Enforcement Memura,ndwn further declares: I

Ca) .... State requirements which are greater ih scope of

coverage than the \edera1 regulations are gdnlrallY those for

which no counter~art can be found in the fddlral

I

I
I

State program requirements that are greater in scope of
I I

coverage than the federal program are not a part of the

1
9
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(13 )

(14)

(15)

(16)

federally-approved program.... Therefore, EPA mav not

fi h . I f h·1 hi. b d' .en orce t at portIon 0 a state program w IC [S roa er m
I \

scope of coverage than the federal program.

As such, the requirement to submit a "sampling plan" id alState-only requireme t

that is beyond the scope of the 'Clean Water Act and is Jnenforceable by EPA, a

provided by 40 CFR § 123.1 (i)',(2). I 'I

No action is required of EPA or PaDEP in response to srlimission of the sampli g

plan. The infoffilation is required by PaDEP to be sUbmitt~d, but the Pennit doe~
not provide for approval or dis~pproval of the samPling!pllan by either agency aJd

the Respondent's reevaluation' of the local limits is not Unditioned on any

response by EPA or PaDEP to ~he sampling plan. The p~r!nit provides that the
: I '

reevaluation oflocal limits is a'separate activity and is to proceed whether or no

h 1 . b' d '.. dfr Jhlt e p an IS su mltte or any response IS receIve om elt ,er agency.

Hence, there are no consequen~es attendant on failure tJ spbmit the sampling

plan. That is, no pass through or interference, no enviroJn1ental hann. no efflue

. I . . nJ . I dk' d fil .1 d hVIO atlons, no operaho mamtenance recor eepmg e IClency, an no ot er

defect in either the Authority's :pretreatment Program o)IP~nnit compliance can

arise from the failure to submit,the sampling plan. I
The information submitted to ~PA in the March, 2010, l:otallimits reevaluation

report indicated that all of the s~mpling used in the reevalJation oflocallimits

consisted of the existing routin~ sampling conducted as ~ah of the administratio

f h A h . , . d . I I Nil . I dd" Io t e ut onty s m ustna pretreatment program. 0 specIa ,a Ihona, or nor -

. I' d d
l

b h" I II' Iroutme samp mg was con ucte ecause t e eXlstmg samp mg protoco s

produced all of the data necess~ry to conduct the requireb \OCallimits reevaluati n

based on a headworks analysis, 'as required by the PennJ Hence, had the

Respondent separately sUbmitt~d the State-mandated "sJm~ling plan," it would
, I '

have stated, in its entirety, "exi~ting sampling protocols ha~e produced adequate
, , 1

data for the reevaluation of the local limits and no new ot Iflodified sampling pI

. " B h h'· h d d h I I I' IIS necessary. ecause t e Aut onty as ocumente t at no samp mg p an was

necessary, the failure to submit lit to EPA is completely JaJmless.

1
110 I
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(IT)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

!

There is no reference in the Clean Water Act or its regulations to the

"reevaluation of local limits b~sed on a headworks anal~s\s" at all. The only

arguably applicable regulatory',reference is found at 40 bfR § I22.44(j)(2)(ii).

That section merely requires "a written technical evaludti6n of the need to revis'

local limits under 40 CFR 403'5(C)(l), following permJ i~suance or reissuance.
, I ,

[Emphasis added.] Notably, no completion date is established by the regulation,

nor does it require it to be "bas'ed on a headworks analykJ"
The requirement of40 CFR § ; 22.44(j)(2)(ii) is eXPlain!e~ in the Preamble to th

Final Rulemaking dated July 24, 1990. That Preamble Jr~vides that "The Agen y

intends the formal evaluation t~ be a written technical e~aluation by the Control

h · d .. hh' h' d ,I. h" 11Aut onty etermllllllg w et er or not t ere IS a nee to revise t e eXisting oca

limits." 55 Fed.Reg. 30117. [Emphasis added.] . II \ .

The Authonty dld submit "a wntten technical evaluation regardlllg whether the

is a need to revise the existing local limits" as part of its ntore comprehensive
,

State-mandated "reevaluation" oflocallimits in March. 2010. Since that
. ,

::~;;::~o:~::~::~::~~:~e;::::~:~~:tf its NPDES Tt' the Authority full

As correctly stated in Paragraph 13 of the Complaint, the NPDES Permit
, I I

requirement is to submit a "reevaluation of [Permittee's] local limits based on a

headworks analysis of its treat~ent plant within one yea~ lfpermit issuance."

This requirement is substantively different from the regJI~tory requirement to

provide a "technical evaluation'ofthe need to revise locll limits."

The two NPDES permit requir~ments to (l) undertake a'!hdadworks analysis and

(2) proceed to reevaluate the lo~al limits themselves are 'inl,addition to the

requirement to determine if theJe is a "need to revise" th~ local limits and are no

encompassed by 40 CFR § 122.'44(j)(2)(ii). Hence, the r~etaluation required by
, ! I

the Permit is a state requirement beyond the scope of the Federal requirement, is
! I I

imposed by the State only, and is not enforceable by EP~. See 40 C.F.R.

§ 123,I(i)(2). I

I I

, ,



(22)

(23)

(24)

(25)

(26)

I i

I

The local limits reevaluation itself indicated that all cu~eht discharges by

industrial users are well below established limits and nJ Jossibility of pass

through or interference currently exists. In fact, the ree~ajuation established tha

four of the current local limits 'are unnecessary becauselit~e pollutants in questi
, I

(arsenic, chromium, lead and nickel) are either not present at all or are always

present in quantities sUbstanti~llY lower than any levellf1concem. Only two of

the local limits are proposed to be made more stringent ladd both were decrease

solely to meet theoretical "wo;st case" conditions USing! a Iconservative and

unrealistic theoretical assumptions and not in response to by real or potential

threat of pass through or interf~rence. Any delay in sUb~;'tting the report result
i ' I

in zero potential environmental effect. II
The local limits reevaluation is submitted for substantive review to EPA Regio

III. Historically, and in this in~tance, EPA has not unde~lken a review of such
I I '

reports within any reasonable time frame. In some instanc~s EPA has taken as

I . d··d I Id I II"ong as a year to review an provi e comments on propose oca lmlts

modifications. I, I
The Respondent is not authorized to revise its EPA-approved pretreatment

program by changing local limits until EPA approves th~ ~roposed revision
I I i

Hence, any delay in submitting the "reevaluation of 10c~1 limits" has no
i I

substantial effect on the time in which the Respondent'sli1dustrial pretreatment

program would be revised. It is reiterated that the effect o~ revising the local

limits is merely administrative and that no change in enJironmental risk is

associated with the proposed lo~allimits revisions. II I

, I

EPA has violated the law and Respondent's due process.rights thereunder by
. i

failing to adhere to the mandatory procedural provisions of 40 CFR Part 22. In

particular, by: I i I
(a) Failing to include a copy of Part 22 with the Complaint served on

I i I

the Respondent, as required by § 22.14(b); and

12



13

(b) Failing to include a "specific reference to each provision of the
I I

Act, implementing regulations, permit, or order wHich respondent is allege

to have violated." I I

EPA has violated substantive law by failing to calculate a proposed penalty taki g
. I

"into account the nature. circumstances, extent and gravity of the violation and,

with respect to the violator, the ability to pay, any prior hiktory of such violatio

the degree of culpability, econ~mic benefit or savings (if 1ny) resulting from th

violation, and other such matters as justice may require"!' pU.S.C. § 1319(g)(3 .

In light of the fact that Pennsylvania does not have an approved pretreatment

program under Clean Water A~t § 402(b)(8), 33 U.S.c. i§ /342(b)(8), the

pretreatment permit conditionsincluded in NPDES permits issued in

Pennsylvania are drafted by EPA Region III. I

. I

EPA Region III provides the permit language to PaDEP and requires that PaDE
I

include such permit conditions into the NPDES permits. I ~hen questions or issu s

arise regarding the appropriateness or meaning of such pretreatment permit

conditions or potential challenges to the permit conditiohsl PaDEP refers the

permittee to EPA Region III to resolve the issues. The Jerittee, in order to ha

PaDEP change the pretreatment permit condition in the hermit, must have EPA

Region III agree to the change. ,Direct contact with EPAlfJr all other conditions

included in the NPDES permit is not required. II
, I

Among other things, the Paperwork Reduction Act ("PRiA['), 44 U.S.c. §§3501 t

seq., requires the approval of the Office of Management and Budget regarding t
I

"collection of information" from ten or more entities. 44 U.S.c. § 3507(a).

The "collection of information,~'as defined in the PRA: I

"means the obtaining, causing to be obtained, soliciti'ng, or requiring

the disclosure to third parties or the public, of factsl'l J opinions by or
, I

for an agency. regardless of form or format, calling for ..., ' I
(i) answers to identical questions posed to, o~ identical

. dk' . . dl Ireportmg or recor eepmg reqUirements Impose on, ten or more

I

(31)

(30)

(29)

(28)

(27)



United States.

proceeding."

44 U.S.c. § 3502(3).

(32)

(33)

(34)

(35)

(36)

,

persons, other than agencies. instrumentalities, dr bmployees of the

II

I

EPA Region III has provided identical pretreatment pennit conditions as those i

h R d ' . .' . b" EPA I fl, I' I "t e espon ent s pennlt, requIrIng su mIssIon to ? la 'samp mg pan, . a

"list of pollutants to be evaluated," and a "reevaluation bf local limits based on

headworks analysis" to PaDEP and required that these ih)ormation collection
I. I I

requirements be incorporated into NPDES permits for sigriificantly more than t

I I IPOTWs. i I

EPA has not obtained approval of the OMB for this infonnation collection

activity as required by 44 U.S.c. § 3507(a). II

The proposed action is subject to certain restrictions on IC1allengeS imposed by

CWA § 509(b)(2), pursuant to the provisions of 40 CFR § 22.38(c), which

paraphrases that section. I II I
CWA § 509(b)(2) provides that the restrictions on challenkes apply "in any civi

or criminal proceeding for ent~rcement." II

Accordingly, the procedure for the assessment of a civill penalty is a "civil,
,

I

B. Legal Arguments Constituting Grounds ofDefense I

· I

The "Circumstances" recited in subsection "A," above, and the Answers to
, I I

paragraphs I through 35 are incorporated as iffully set forth herein. The following
, I I

grounds of defense include both absolute defenses and affinnative defenses.

(1) The Permit Conditions At Issue Are Not Clean Wate1r ~ct Requirements

Since (as discussed in paragraphs 36.l.A. 7-9 above) pJ,lSylvania has not
• I Iobtained approval of a pretreatment program as part of its NPDES program

approval as required by the CWA, the inclusion of any ~rltreatment requiremen s

in NPDES permits issued by th~ PaDEP does not imple~Jnt any Clean Water A t

provisions, including those sections itemized in § 309(gJd)(A). At most, the
I

permit conditions are State law permit conditions where the State has ill!! been

granted the authority to implen:ent the federal pretreatmen~ program
· I I
I 14 II

I •

I ,



requirements. Essentially. all of the pretreatment progdm requirements stated i
I I

Part C. Section VI of the Respondent's NPDES permit are purely State permit
I I

requirements and are not subject to a penalty under C1AII § 309(g).

(2) No Violation For Which EPA May Assess A Penalty Under The Clean Wa r

Act Has Been Credibly Alleged In The Complaint I
.. I

(a) CWA Section 309(g) penalty authority only applies to a person who has
I I

"violated section 1311, 1312, 1316, 1317, 1318, 1328 o'r 1345" of USC Title 3

• h . 1 d .. d· . I···· II!. h .'or as VIO ate any permn con Itlon or Imitation Imp ementmg suc sections.

(b) Respondent has not violated any of the CWA sebtlons delineated in

§ 309(g) in that: I I

(i) None of the pretreatment requirements iJ PIart C, Section VI oft e
• I

Permit are imposed by the PaDEP under authority of th~ CWA.

(ii) No violation of the Clean Water Act occlr~ed by the Responden s

failure to submit a "sampling plan" within the time limils lestablished in the

NPDES Permit because there is no such Federal requireh1~nt.
I I

(iii) No violation of the Clean Water Act occurred by the Respondent s

failure to submit a "reevaluation of local limits based od al headworks analysis"

within the time limits established in the NPDES Permit Ucause there is no such

Federal requirement.', II II

(c) The Respondent fully complied with the only applicable Federal law wit

regard to local limits evaluatio~ in that it submitted "a ++en technical evaluati n

of the need to revise local limits under 40 CFR 403.5(c)(l), following permit ..

reissuance." I, I I
(3) The Permit Conditions At Issue May Not Be Enforce~ By EPA Since They

I ,

Are State Provisions Beyond The Scope Of EPA Enforcemehtl
. , I

The permit conditions at issue are "beyond the sdope" of Federal

regulations in that they are activities not encompassed b{ lny CWA requirement

. f F 'l I· S· P I I .-or any reqUlrement 0 any edera Regu anon. mce E A may not enlorce State

requirements that are beyond the scope of federal law, tJe~e requirements are no

enforceable by EPA. 40 CFR § 123.1 (i)(2) II

IS I

I .



(c)

(b)

(b)

(c)

EPA Has Not Filed A Valid Complaint And Is Therefore Not Authorized T
,

Assess An Administrative Penalty I
(a) EPA may onlv assess an administrative penalty if it first files "a compla' t

conforming to Sec. 22.14." 40 CFR §§ 22.50, n.13.
I I I

Because the Complaint does not comply with §§'12r-14(a)(2) and (b), EP

has not filed a complai~t that conforms to § 22.1
1

4.1

Therefore, the purported "complaint" must be dis~issed with prejudice
. I I .

improper and illegal and no further action may bel' taken by EPA.
, I

(5) EPA Has Violated Respondent's Due Process Rights iBr Failing To Follow

Required Procedures And By Failing To Adhere To StatutorYI
Requirements

Regarding Computation Of A Proposed Penalty In The Co.1plaint

(a) The procedural requirements of 40 CFR § 22. 14 laJpmandatory. 40 CFR

§§ 22.50, 22.13.' II !,

EPA did not adhere to the procedural requiremeits: of § 22.14 by: (i)

failing to provide a copy of the Consolidated RUle~ ofPractice to the

Respondent. and (ii) failing to include a "specific reference to each

provision of the Act, i~plementing regulations. Je~mit or order with

respondent is alleged to have violated." I I

EPA also violated Respondent's substantive due Iprocess rights by failin

d ... I d I I . dbto propose an a mmlstrative pena ty compute as reqUire y statute.

(6) The Proposed Penalty Is Not In Accordance With AJpiicable Law And

Cannot Lawfully Be Imposed' I I

Assuming, arguendo, that an administrative penalty is aJpropriate under the fact
I I

pled (as corrected and amended by this Answer), all of the factors 'required to be

considered by § 309(g) are either not present at all or else indica~e:a de minimis level of

applicability, as set forth in detail in subparagraph 36.3 (Basis fo': Opposing The

Proposed Penalty) below. Hence, any ~dministrative penalty th1t ~ight be due would b

extremely small. ' I \

(7) No Penalty May Be Imposed For Violation Of Requirements Promulgated I

Violation Of The Paperwork Reduction Act I

,16
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proceeding. "

must be dismissed.

(a)

(b)

(c)

The EPA has not obtained the pennission of thelO!MB to assert the

reporting requirements imposed on dozens of Pennsylvania pennittees,
· I !

required by the Paperwork Reduction Act ("P,",), 44 U.S.c. §3507(a)

To the extent the two alleged violations are deeme1d to appropriately be

"d I' h'" f hi.!Ie era requuements. t e tmpOStlion 0 suc reqUIrements were
I 1

undertaken in contravention of the Paperwork Rbduction Act ("PRA"),

U.S.C. §§3501 et seq. . II

Section 3512 of the PRA provides that no penalty shall be imposed. and
! !

that the protections provided by the PRA may be raised in the fonn of a

complete defense, where the PRA collection of ilnionnation requirement

has not been complied with. 44 U.S.c. § 3512. I

EPA Has Not Joined PaDEP As Required By Law. I \

(a) The Respondent is a municipality authority chartered under the
I, !

Pennsylvania Municipality Authorities Act. 53 RI.s. § 5601 et seq.
· !

The regulations and the CWA establish that the proposed action is a "ci
I

I
CWA § 309(e) provides, "[w]henever a municipality is a party to a civil

action brought by the United States under this se~tlon, the State in whic

the municipality is located shall be joined as a plrt~."
EPA has not joined the 'Commonwealth of Pennly!vania, or the

Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protle~tion as a party to this
I !

action. Accordingly, EPA is in violation of applicable law and this matt r

· I I

(b)

(c)

(d)

(8)

in paragraphs 15. 19,22, and 26.

2. Facts Which Respondent Disputes I !

A. Certain allegations set forth in the Complaint arel Denied as inaccurate 0
! I

incomplete incorrect in the Answers above, including, but not limited to those discusse

I

17



. I

; I

B. Certain facts as set forth in the Complaint are incomplete and, therefore.
I I

inaccurate. The corrections. amendments, and additions to the laits are set forth passi in

paragraphs I through 36 of this Answer, which are incorporated here as if fully set fort

3. Basis For Opposing The Proposed Penalty

The averments of subsections 36.I.A (Circumstances) and B (Legal Arguments
, I

above set forth in detail the basis for opposing the penalty. The~e'include (in summary

form): I II \
A. EPA has not submitted a proper and lawful Complaint in that it has

violated the applicable procedural regulations in 40 CFR Part 2k 1s set forth above.

Accordingly, EPA has no legal authority to proceed to assess aJylpenalty whatsoever i
'. I I

the matter at this Docket number. I II

B. EPA has no authority to assess a penalty for the faIlure to submit a

"sampling plan" by a certain date because the requirement is solely a State requirement

not implemented under Federal law or regulations, is beyond th~ lcope of such law and

regulations, and therefore may not be enforced by EPA as prov!d~d at 40 CFR

§ 123.I(i)2). : I, 'I

C. EPA has no authority to assess a penalty for the failure to submit a

"reevaluation of local limits based on a headworks analysis" beballse there is no federal

law requiring that any such task be undertaken at any time. HenU, the requirement-bo h

with regard to the date due and with regard to the task to be und1eJaken-is solely a Sta
I I

requirement not implemented under Federal law or regulations, 'is ,beyond the scope of

such law and regulations, and may not be enforced by EPA as P~O~Iided at 40 CFR

§ 123.1(i)2).

D. EPA has not calculated a proposed penalty considering the various facto

as required by statute, but has merely selected the maximum Po~silble penalty, which

action is unlawful and a violation of Respondent's due process )ig~ts.
, I

E. EPA's failure to obtain approval ofOMB for thchformation collection

activities provides Respondent with a complete defense to this matter.

18
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E.

system;

I •

I 'I

. I i

The mandatory statutory elements to be considJJ in establishing a CIa s
I I

I administrative penalty (assuming for purposes of this paragraph,only that any penalty

may be authorized at all) dictate that any penalty be extremely lo.!v, in that:
,

Nature Of The Alleged Violations I
(I) The nature of the alleged violations is merely one of time, not substance

I i

(2) The nature of the alleged violations is not related to protection of water
,

quality, the environment, or public health; I
,

(3) The nature of the violations is one related solelYlto, records and reports 0

ancillary matters not directly related to effluent limitations or operation of the treatmen

I

Circumstances Of The Alleged Violations I

(4) The circumstances with regard to the sampling plan are that no EPA

approval or disapproval is required and the submittal is for infohJation only;
I :

(5) The circumstances with regard to the sampling plan are that no "samplin
, ,

, .

plan" was necessary and failure to inform EPA of that fact is oflno consequence;

(6) The circumstances with regard to the "locallimiis ~eevaluationbased on
. I ,

headworks analysis" are that the report showed that no substantive changes to local lim' s

are required in order to reduce the risk of pass through or interfJr~nce and that the curre t
, I

local limits have proven to be fully protective and, for the most bart. overly stringent;
, I

Extent Of The Alleged Violations I'

0) The extent of the violations was of time only; I i
Gravity Of The Alleged Violations I

(8) There being no possible environmental consequehJes, the sampling plan

being totally unnecessary, and the sampling plan being submitte1d ~or information only,

the gravity of the late submission of the sampling plan is minusdule;

(9) There being no possibleenvironmental consequehdes, and the fact that

EPA review of the report has not begun, some four months after! s~bmission, the gravity

of the late submission of the local limits reevaluation is minimal: II

Respondent's Prior History of Noncompliance

II



applicable law, they are Denied.

· I

(l0) The Respondent has had only two minor effluent exceedances over the

past three years, neither one related to industrial waste discharJe~;
· I I

Degree of Culpability I I

(II) The alleged violations were the result of an administrative oversight and

not of malice or wrongful intent;

Economic Benefit Or Savings Of The Alleged Violations

(12) The Respondent enjoyed no economic savings o~ benefit by reason of

compiling and submitting the sampling plan or local limits reeJalLation report later tha

the due date.

4. Request for a Hearing

Given the gravity and extent of EPA's violations of both procedural and
I ,

substantive law, and the lack of any colorable case to be made against the Respondent,

the Respondent hereby requests that a hearing be scheduled if t~i~ matter is not first

dismissed because of the several procedural defects,.

37. The Respondent's request for a hearing is stated above.

38-41 No response to these paragraphs is required. To the extent:the averments are

inconsistent with applicable law. they are Denied. I I

• II
VI. SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE I I

42--48 No response to these paragraphs is required. To the extentthe averments are

inconsistent with applicable law, they are Denied. Respondent liJll consider requesting

settlement conference and will communicate this to EPA separalely.
I '

· III
VII. QUICK RESOLUTION

I

49-59 No response is required. To the extent the averments are iriconsistent with
· I

20



applicable law, they are Denied.

VIII. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION I

!

60-62 No response is required. To the extent the avennents are inconsistent with
!

Respectfully submitted,

Date: July27,2010

By:

By:

I

METTE. EVANS & WOODSIDE

I I

!?~ G}k-

HALL & ASSOCIATES

//s I

Gary Cohen, Esquire I I
1101 15'1. Street, N.W. Suite 203
Washington, D.C. 20005-5007
(202) 463-1166 - Phone
(202) 463-4207 - Fax

I

Attorneys for Respondent Derry Township
Municipal Authority
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